

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL

BULWELL AND BULWELL FOREST AREA COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting held at Bulwell Riverside Joint Service Centre, Main Street, Bulwell, NG6 8QJ on 21 May 2014 from 5.30 pm - 6.50 pm

Membership

Present

Councillor Eunice Campbell (Chair)
Councillor Alan Clark (Vice Chair)
Councillor Jackie Morris (Vice Chair)
Councillor Ginny Klein
Councillor Eunice Campbell (Chair)
Councillor Alan Clark (Vice Chair)
Councillor John Hartshorne
Councillor Ginny Klein

Absent

Councillor Nick McDonald

Community Representatives

- | | | |
|-------------------|---|--|
| Reginald Knowles | - | Bradford Street Allotments |
| Sheila Loades | - | Bulwell Hall Tenants' and Residents' Association |
| ✓ John Hancock | - | CRESTA Tenants' and Residents' Association |
| Doreen Carruthers | - | Forest Park Neighbourhood Watch |
| ✓ Roz Yousouf | - | Nottingham Elders Forum |
| ✓ David Norman | - | My Sight Nottinghamshire |
| Gillian Slack | - | Ravensworth Road Methodist Church |
| ✓ Paul Bakajsa | - | Rise Park Action Group |
| ✓ John Millington | - | Rise Park Community Association |
| ✓ Paul Jackson | - | Royal British Legion Bulwell Branch |
| ✓ Sally Wilson | - | Snapewood Community Centre |

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:

- | | | |
|---------------------|---|---|
| Christine Busuttill | - | Nottinghamshire Police |
| John Davis | - | Community Protection Operations Manager North |
| Heidi May | - | North Locality Manager, NCC |
| Celia Knight | - | Neighbourhood Development Officer, NCC |
| Nicky Jenkins | - | Tenancy and Estate Manager, Nottingham City Homes |
| Steve Pepper | - | Manager, Bulwell Riverside, NCC |
| Najeeb Nazir | - | Community Safety Officer, NCC |
| Cath Ziane-Pryor | - | Constitutional Services, NCC |

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Councillor Campbell is appointed Chair for the 2014/15 municipal year.

1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR

Councillor Campbell is appointed Chair for the 2014/15 municipal year.

2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRS

Councillor Alan Clark and Councillor Jackie Morris are appointed Joint Vice-Chairs.

3 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Doreen Carruthers
Gillian Slack
Councillor Nick McDonald
Reg Knowles
Eileen Stacey
Lynita Conradie
Sheila Loades
Suki Shergill

The Chair informed the committee that Doreen Carruthers is in London today to receive a British Empire Medal, and offered her congratulations.

4 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 19 February 2014 were confirmed and signed by the Chair.

5 BULWELL RIVERSIDE JOINT SERVICE CENTRE - UPDATE ON USE / LETTINGS

Steve Pepper, Manager of Bulwell Riverside Joint Service Centre, delivered a PowerPoint presentation, informing the committee of the wide variety community and private groups and clubs hosted at the centre and the community activities held.

The occupancy for the rooms available to hire is as follows:

Room Name	March 2014	April 2014
<u>Youth And Play</u>		
Play Centre	41%	18 %
Sports Hall	57%	54%
Kitchen	55%	47%
Activity Room	37%	42%
<u>Community Area</u>		
Community Room 1	49%	55%
Community Room 2	56%	48%
Community Room 3	72%	58%
Meeting Room 1	35%	46%
Meeting Room 2	29%	24%
Training Room	40%	41%

There was no intention to take income from other community facilities and careful thought has been given to pricing of room hire at the centre, ensuring that this is in line with other local venues. Where applications and enquiries for room hire cannot be met at the centre, the management team are happy to sign post and promote other local facilities.

It is noted that the 'Youth and Play' section of the building does have restricted availability and any applications to use the space has to be authorised with the appropriate service.

A website is to be developed for Bulwell Riverside Joint Service Centre which will in future hopefully include an interactive tour of the facilities.

Community representatives expressed concern that the sports hall is very rarely available to hire as when 'Youth and Play' are using any part of that building, no other groups could have access.

The local netball team wanted to use the hall but as it does not have netball court floor markings, and as the funds were not available in this financial year to install them, it was not possible to accommodate them.

It is noted that room hire charges vary between the health section of the building and the main section as health charge per session and all other charges are per hour.

Anyone wishing to enquire about hiring a room can call 0115 883 3500 details.

Resolved to note the update.

6 RESPECT FOR NOTTINGHAM SURVEY RESULTS

Najib Nazir, North Locality Community Safety Officer for the Crime and Drugs Partnership, delivered a report which presents the findings of the Respect for Nottingham survey results.

The survey was to measure citizen's perception of anti-social behaviour (ASB). 2700 City residents have contributed to the survey which took place during December 2013. 17% of residents across the city perceived ASB to be a problem. At ward level this is 16% of citizens responded within Bulwell Ward, and 12% responded within Bulwell Forest Ward.

The lowest levels of antisocial behaviour perception and the highest level of confidence in the police were reported since the survey had started.

Dog fouling, litter and rubbish remain constantly high concerns in surveys for the past 3 years.

The full results of the survey, including Ward detail and the community, age and ethnicity mix of those responding, can be found at: <http://www.nottinghamcdp.com>

The committee made the following points;

- (a) dog fouling continues to be an issue across all wards within the city. Councillors and David Norman of My Sight Nottinghamshire, visited Cantrell Primary School to talk to the children about dog fouling and the difficulties it can cause partially sighted people. When asked, half of the 420 children in the school have a family dog. It is important to educate the children as they will help educate the adults. David Norman explained to the children that partially

sighted people can not necessarily see the fouling and are not always aware if they tread in it. This was also the same with food which is dropped on the pavement but with the added issue that guide dogs can be distracted by it. The children were urged to discourage their parents from dropping food in the street and to encourage picking up of dog mess. It is noted that another issue for partially sighted people is overgrown hedges trees and flowers which protrude on to the pavement space;

- (b) Tenants and Residents Associations, along with the Local Action Groups and School Councils are also concerned about dog fouling and the lack of dog fouling wardens. Many educational campaigns and dog fouling clean ups have been held but as the problem persists this proves that enforcement is required;
- (c) fixed penalty fines are regularly issued across the City for dog fouling offences. These fines are advertised in the area of the offence;
- (d) it should be noted that all litter bins the City can be used to deposit dog foul and that if David Norman, as a partially sighted person, can pick up after his guide dog, there is no excuse for anyone else not to pick up after their dog;
- (e) North Locality Manager Heidi May asked that any health and safety risk and trees and bushes protruding on the pavements be reported to the Neighbourhood Action Teams so that action can be taken;
- (f) while the results of the survey were not good, there has been a vast improvement from just a few years ago when burnt out cars and vandalism was a big problem in the north of the City.

The survey results, along with further analysis, will be used to help prioritise issues highlighted.

RESOLVED to note findings of the survey.

7 POLICE UPDATE

Acting Inspector Christine Busuttill delivered a brief update on the Area Policing Priorities which were identified following consideration of reported crime, issues raised through the on-line consultation system, the Local Action Groups and Tenant and Resident meetings. Further consultation and monitoring will take place and revised priorities will be set for the next three month period.

Bulwell Forest Ward

There has been a burglary awareness campaign in St Albans and Highbury Road area, encouraging citizens to ensure their properties are secure, and windows closed/locked especially during warm weather, even if they are in their homes.

Bulwell Ward

The main issues to report are anti-social behaviour and grass fires in and around the Snapewood area. There is a possible suspect but this has not been confirmed yet and the neighbourhood teams are working with the Fire and Rescue Service.

It is noted that following an active operation, the statistics for drug-related reported crime are up, but that serious crime is down.

In the Rise Park area, criminal damage remains an issue.

There has been an increase in the theft of unlocked bikes and also shoplifting. 10 life-size cardboard cutouts of local police officers are to be shared out among local shops, although it is hard to tell if they are effective.

Members of the committee expressed concern at ongoing issues in Merchant Street and urged that action is taken against the perpetrators.

RESOLVED to thank Acting Inspector Christine Busuttill for her attendance.

8 AREA CAPITAL FUND - 2013/15 PROGRAMMES

Celia Knight, Neighbourhood Development Officer, presented the report which proposed 3 schemes within the Bulwell Forest Ward.

RESOLVED

(1) to approve the following Bulwell Forest schemes:

Location	Estimate	Details
Earlsfield Drive (footpath)	£29,527	Completion of resurfacing the remaining footpaths on both sides of Earlsfield Drive
Colston Road (Dropped kerb)	£1,700	Install dropped kerbs on either side of entrance to garage area on Colston Road
Bakewell Drive (Steps)	£427	Apply white lines to the edge of steps on path leading off Bakewell Drive

(2) to note the following:

(i) Bulwell Ward

Total Decommited***		£0
2013-2015 LTP allocation		£170,000
LTP carried forward from 2011-2013		£0
2013 - 2014 Public Realm allocation		£51,000
Public Realm carried forward		£6,050
2014 - 2015 Public Realm allocation		£51,000
Total Available 2013 - 2015 ACF		£278,050
*Less LTP schemes	-	£120,313

**Less Public Realm schemes	-	£9,429
***Decommitted funds	+	£0
Remaining available balance		£148,308
LTP element remaining		£49,687
Public Realm element remaining		£98,621

(ii) **Bulwell Forest Ward**

Total Withdrawn***		£0
2013-2015 LTP allocation		£100,000
LTP carried forward from 2011-2013		-£2,930
2013 - 2014 Public Realm allocation		£30,000
Public Realm carried forward		£6,794
2014 – 2015 Public Realm allocation		£30,000
Total Available 2013 - 2015 ACF		£163,864
*Less LTP schemes	-	£92,415
**Less Public Realm schemes	-	£10,257
***Decommitted funds	+	£0
Remaining available balance		£61,192
LTP element remaining		£4,655
Public Realm element remaining		£56,537

9 ENVIRONMENTAL SUBMISSIONS FROM NOTTINGHAM CITY HOMES

Nicky Jarvis, Tenancy and Estate Manager, presented the report which requests the Committee’s approval for a proposed scheme in Bulwell Ward.

RESOLVED to approve the following for Bulwell Ward:

Location	Details of proposal	Issues	Estimated costs
Snapenook Court	Metal gates and fencing to match what is currently in place, to be erected to the entrance to the car parking area.	This would increase security to the complex and car park, as well as prevent non-residents of the Sheltered Scheme from parking in the car park.	£4302.84

10 WARD PERFORMANCE REPORT

Celia Knight, Neighbourhood Development Officer, presented the report.

The following points were highlighted:

- (a) Paul Jackson of the Bulwell British Legion reported that poppies and trees have been planted and that the Bulwell British Legion would like to place a plaque jointly with the City Council, in commemoration of the start of the First World War 100 years ago on 4 August 1914. All Ward councillors agreed to

the proposal. It is noted that on 4 August Saint Mary's Church Bulwell, will be open from 7am until 7pm;

- (b) with regard to the relocation of the Bulwell Credit Union, the Councillors reported that Lisa Black, Head Of Revenues Benefits and Welfare Rights, is considering possibilities of retaining some form of counter point within the area as it is recognised that not everyone can afford to travel into the City. However, as the credit union is running as a bank, it legally needs to have a paid employees. As it is currently unable to retrieve funds for many of the loans taken out, it is doubtful that the Bulwell Credit Union can continue in its present state so this could result in job losses. The Leader and Deputy Leader of the Council, along with Ward Councillors and other elected members are concerned at the potential closure. It is suggested that the future of the Bulwell Credit Union be discussed at a future Area Committee meeting;
- (c) concerns have been raised regarding Bulwell Hall Golf Course and rumours that the contractor has gone into liquidation. Eddy Curry, Head of Parks and Open Spaces, submitted the following statement:
 - (i) at present we are working in partnership with the Bulwell Hall Golf Club in order to keep the course maintained and to keep the pavilion / café operational.
 - (ii) The mounding works are set to continue under Parks control.
 - (iii) We have in place an interim management agreement with the Bulwell Hall Golf Club
 - (iv) Key message is that it is business is open as usual

Councillors requested that Eddy Curry attend the September Area Committee meeting to provide a full update. The committee were assured that the golf course will be kept open.

RESOLVED

- (1) to note the Ward Performance Report;**
- (2) to note that Ward Councillors, from their individual councillor budgets, and the Bulwell British Legion are to jointly fund a plaque to commemorate the centenary of the First World War;**
- (3) for an update on the future of the Bulwell Credit Union to be submitted to the next meeting;**
- (4) for the Head of Parks and Open Spaces to update the committee on the current situation regarding Bulwell Hall Golf Course.**

11 FUTURE MEETING DATES

Resolved to note the following meeting dates at 5:30 pm at Bulwell Riverside:

3 September 2014

10 December 2014

18 February 2015